CHEMICAL HERITAGE FOUNDATION

MARK B. VAN DOREN

Pew Scholars in the Biomedical Sciences

Transcript of an Interview Conducted by

David J. Caruso

at

Johns Hopkins University Baltimore, Maryland

on

26 and 27 November 2007 (With Subsequent Corrections and Additions)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

This oral history is part of a series supported by a grant from the Pew Charitable Trusts based on the Pew Scholars Program in the Biomedical Sciences. This collection is an important resource for the history of biomedicine, recording the life and careers of young, distinguished biomedical scientists and of Pew Scholars Program in the Biomedical Sciences Advisory Committee members.

This oral history is made possible through the generosity of



CHEMICAL HERITAGE FOUNDATION Oral History Program FINAL RELEASE FORM

This document contains my understanding and agreement with the Chemical Heritage Foundation with respect to my participation in the audio-recorded interview conducted by <u>David Caruso</u> on <u>26 and 27 November 2007</u>. I have read the transcript supplied by Chemical Heritage Foundation.

- 1. The audio recording, corrected transcript, photographs, and memorabilia (collectively called the "Work") will be maintained by the Chemical Heritage Foundation and made available in accordance with general policies for research and other scholarly purposes.
- 2. I hereby grant, assign, and transfer to the Chemical Heritage Foundation all right, title, and interest in the Work, including the literary rights and the copyright, except that I shall retain the right to copy, use, and publish the Work in part or in full until my death.
- 3. The manuscript may be read and the audio recording(s) heard by scholars approved by the Chemical Heritage Foundation subject to the restrictions listed below. The scholar pledges not to quote from, cite, or reproduce by any means this material except with the written permission of the Chemical Heritage Foundation.
- 4. I wish to place the conditions that I have checked below upon the use of this interview. I understand that the Chemical Heritage Foundation will enforce my wishes until the time of my death, when any restrictions will be removed.

Please check one:

a.

No restrictions for access.

NOTE: Users citing this interview for purposes of publication are obliged under the terms of the Chemical Heritage Foundation Oral History Program to obtain permission from Chemical Heritage Foundation, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

Semi-restricted access. (May view the Work. My permission required to quote, cite, or reproduce.)

c.____

Restricted access. (My permission required to view the Work, quote, cite, or reproduce.)

This constitutes my entire and complete understanding.

(Signature)

Mark B. Van Doren

7/3/ (Date)

This interview has been designated as Semi Restricted Access.

One may view the oral history with the permission of CHF. However, the permission of the interviewee is required to quote from, cite, or reproduce the oral history.

Please contact CHF to request permission.



The Chemical Heritage Foundation (CHF) serves the community of the chemical and molecular sciences, and the wider public, by treasuring the past, educating the present, and inspiring the future. CHF maintains a world-class collection of materials that document the history and heritage of the chemical and molecular sciences, technologies, and industries; encourages research in CHF collections; and carries out a program of outreach and interpretation in order to advance an understanding of the role of the chemical and molecular sciences, technologies, and industries; and industries in shaping society.

MARK B. VAN DOREN

1965	Born in Syracuse, New York on 3 September
	Education
1983-1987 1989-1994	Cornell University, B.A. with distinction, Biology University of California, San Diego, Ph.D., Biology
	Professional Experience
1987-1989	Oncogene Science, Manhasset, New York Research Technician
1994-1996	Whitehead Institute for Biomedical Research, Cambridge, Massachusetts, Post-doctoral Fellowship, Dr. Ruth Lehmann
1996-1999	Skirball Institute for Biomolecular Medicine, New York, New York Post-doctoral Fellowship, Dr. Ruth Lehmann
1999-2006 2006-present 2006-present	Johns Hopkins University Assistant Professor, Department of Biology Associate Professor, Department of Biology Co-Director, Graduate Program in Cellular, Molecular and Developmental Biology and Biophysics
	Honors
1992	Society for Developmental Biology Award for

1774	Society for Developmental Diology Tward for
	Achievement in Embryology
1994	Howard Hughes Medical Institute Research Associate
1995	Finalist, Larry Sandler Award (International competition for thesis
	work in <i>Drosophila</i>)
1995-1997	American Cancer Society Postdoctoral Fellowship
1998	Howard Hughes Medical Institute Research Associate
2000-2004	Pew Scholars Award

ABSTRACT

Mark D. Van Doren was born and raised in upstate New York with his three siblings. Although Van Doren's father was a physician, he did not discuss medicine or science at home much; Van Doren's interest in biology developed mainly during the course of his high school science classes. He undertook summer research in photoporphyrin derivatives at Roswell Park Cancer Institute in Buffalo, New York in an attempt to further this interest in biology.

After matriculating at Cornell University—a family tradition—Van Doren began research with Efraim Racker in the field of bioenergetics. While working with Racker, Van Doren was exposed to some of the complexities of scientific practice, including research ethics and the need for experimental replication and validation. During his time at Cornell, he was able to publish a paper in a scientific journal, an experience that helped him decide upon laboratory science as his career. After graduating from Cornell, Van Doren worked at Oncogene Science prior to starting graduate work at the University of California, San Diego.

While doing a rotation in James W. Posakony's laboratory, Van Doren developed an interest in *Drosophila*; he then decided to pursue research on the biochemistry of *Drosophila* BHLH proteins for his degree, which quickly resulted in a 1991 *Development* paper. In an effort to expand his interest in and knowledge of relevant science early in his graduate career, Van Doren studied at the Woods Hole Marine Biological Laboratory taking a course on embryology. He did his postdoctoral research with Ruth Lehmann, first at the Whitehead Institute for Biomedical Research and then at the Skirball Institute for Biomolecular Medicine. In the Lehmann laboratory, Van Doren began his work on *Drosophila* germ cells that had first peaked his interest at Woods Hole. His HMG-CoA reductase work led to a 1998 *Nature* publication.

Upon completing his post-doctoral research, Van Doren accepted a position at Johns Hopkins University where he has continued his *Drosophila* research. He received the Pew Scholars in the Biomedical Sciences award shortly after starting as a principal investigator, an award that provided him validation as a young researcher. Throughout the interview Van Doren discussed his current research, the challenges of running a laboratory, and funding.

INTERVIEWER

David J. Caruso earned a B.A. in the History of Science, Medicine, and Technology from the Johns Hopkins University in 2001 and a Ph.D. in Science and Technology Studies from Cornell University in 2008. His graduate work focused on the interaction of American military and medical personnel from the Spanish-American War through World War I and the institutional transformations that resulted in the development of American military medicine as a unique form of knowledge and practice. David is currently the Program Manager for Oral History at the CHF. His current research interest focuses on the discipline formation of biomedical science in 20th-century America and the organizational structures that have contributed to such formation.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Childhood Upstate New York – Physician father – Pielogy interest in high school	1
Summer research at Roswell Park Cancer Center.	
College Education Cornell University. Family history at Cornell. Prominent medical issues of the 1980s. Laboratory research with Efraim Racker. Publishing as an undergraduate. Scientific ethics and Mark Spector. Oncogene Science after Cornell graduation.	10
Graduate Education University of California, San Diego. James W. Posakony. <i>Drosophila</i> proteins and biochemistry. Woods Hole Marine Biological Laboratory course in embryology. Publishing. Process of writing	
Post-doctoral Research Ruth Lehmann. Transition to genetic screening. Lack of laboratory hierarchy. Transition from Whitehead Institute for Biomedical Research to the Skirball Institute for Biomolecular Medicine.	38
Principal Investigator Searching for positions at same time as wife. Johns Hopkins University. Continuing <i>Drosophila</i> research. Running a laboratory. Teaching. Dividing post-doctoral research with Lehmann. Publishing.	49
 Pew Scholars Program in the Biomedical Sciences Pew Scholars Award. Local Scholars. Scientific momentum and validation. Annual Meetings. Policy issues. Potential collaborations. 	59
Funding NIH funding. Preliminary Data. Potential Significance.	66
Biomedical Science Instrumentation. Changing technology. Bioethics and research. Publishing. Hierarchy of scientific journals. Image of the scientist. Society for Developmental Biology.	69
Index	84

INDEX

A

ADD [attention deficit disorder], 2, 9, 13
Adobe Photoshop, 74
Alpha Emissions, 21
Antibodies, 33, 69, 74
Atomic Bomb, 83
ATP [adenosine triphosphate], 4, 5, 16, 17, 20, 37
Austria, 25

B

Baltimore, Maryland, 1, 41, 47 Beecher, Henry K., 77 Bible, 80 Biology, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 18, 20, 24, 33, 34, 37, 50, 60, 75, 80, 82 AP biology course, 6, 9 biochemistry, 16, 18, 20, 33, 34 bioenergetics, 17, 20 bioethics, 57 biomedicine, 82 biomolecules, 47 developmental biology, 17, 29, 30, 33, 34, 37, 38, 50, 57, 64, 69, 82 genetics, 41, 48, 49, 55 molecular biology, 6, 42, 72, 82 structural biology, 64 Biomedical Science, 3, 7, 14, 17, 64, 73, 82 Bio-Safety, 51 Boston, Massachusetts, 41, 44 Broiher, Heather T., 43 Bronner-Fraser, Miriam, 38 Buffalo, New York, 5, 9

С

C. elegans, 38 California, 26, 29, 41 Canada, 49 Cancer, 5, 6, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 25, 77, 82 Carnegie Institute, 61 Cell, 27, 48, 73, 76 Cells cell lines, 18 germ cell migration, 38, 39, 42, 47, 48, 52, 53, 68 germ cells, 38, 39, 40, 42, 47, 48, 50, 52, 53, 68 stem cells, 73, 77, 79, 80 Chaumont, New York, 10 Chemistry, 12, 80 organic chemistry, 12 Chicago, Illinois, 63 Children, 2, 5, 54 China, 57 Cloning, 25, 48, 53, 68, 82 Collaborations, 64 Columbia University, 39 Competition, 59, 73 Conferences, 23 Confocal Microscopes, 68, 69, 70, 71, 74 Cornell University, 1, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 17,20 Costa Rica, 64

D

Del Mar, California, 29 Development, 76 Disneyland, 41 DNA, 6, 72, 81 Drosophila, 26, 29, 30, 33, 37, 38, 39, 40, 47, 50, 72

E

Embryos, 29, 33, 38, 47, 57, 69, 72, 73, 80 Enzymes, 18, 47, 48, 49, 68, 75 Ethics, 21, 71, 72, 73, 74, 77, 82, 83 Evans, Ronald M., 27

F

Fantasy Island, 45 Farber, Steven A., 81 Fausto-Sterling, Anne, 78 Firth, Mark, 24 Fluorescence Microscopy, 69 Foulkes, J. Gordon, 24 Fraud, 21, 22, 70 Fruit Flies, 26, 29 Funding, 26, 52, 56, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69, 76, 77, 79

G

Genes, 20, 25, 38, 41, 49, 52 gene expression, 25 Genetic Screens, 48, 49 Germany, 43 Glycolysis, 17, 18 Gonads, 38, 47, 52, 53

H

Harvard University, 11 Henderson, Barbara W., 7 Hepatitis, 77 Heppel, Leon, 17 High School, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13, 15, 16, 24 HIV [Human Immunodeficiency Virus], 14 HMG-CoA reductase, 47, 48, 52, 68 HMGCR, 67, 68 Howard Hughes Medical Investigator, 42, 44, 65 Hypotheses, 48, 57, 75

I

Image of the Scientist, 57, 74, 79 Iodine, 21 Isotopes, 21 Ithaca, New York, 13, 14 Ivy League, 11

J

Johns Hopkins University, 1, 4, 9, 15, 16, 45, 47, 49, 50, 56, 57, 59, 60

Journal of Cell Biology, 74

K

Kadonaga, James T., 27, 29 Karin, Michael, 27 Kinases, 17, 25 tyrosine kinases, 17 Krebs Cycle, 17

L

Laboratory Culture, 23 Lake Ontario, 10 Lehmann, Ruth, 39, 40, 42, 43, 44, 45, 47, 48, 52, 53, 54 Leichtfried, Franz E., 25 Levine, Mike, 39 Lipitor, 47 Long Island, New York, 24

Μ

MacKinnon, Roderick, 63 Manhasset, New York, 20, 24, 25 Max Planck Institute, 43 Medical School, 1 Meluh, Pamela B., 60 Memorial Sloan-Kettering Cancer Center, 60,61 Mentoring, 32, 42 Merck & Co., 21 Microscopy, 69, 70 electronic microscopy, 69 MIT [Massachusetts Institute of Technology], 39, 43, 44 Whitehead Institute for Biomedical Research, 39, 42, 43, 44 Moore, Lisa A., 43 MRC [Medical Research Council], 24

Ν

Nature, 27, 48 Nervous System, 38, 48, 50 Neural Tube, 38, 50 Neurocrest, 38 New England Journal of Medicine, 77 New York, New York, 1, 5, 10, 13, 20, 29, 44, 45, 47, 50
Staten Island, 77
NIH [National Institutes of Health], 18, 24, 59, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 76, 82
R01 Funding, 65, 66
Nobel Prize, 21, 63
North Shore University Hospital, 24
NYU [New York University], 43, 45
Skirball Institute of Biomolecular Medicine, 43, 50

0

Oncogene Science, 20, 24, 25, 26 Oncogenes, 17, 24, 25 RAS oncogenes, 18

Р

P-32, 21 PCR [polymerase chain reaction], 71 Pew Charitable Trusts Advisory Board, 63 Annual Meetings, 7, 23, 40, 43, 55, 56, 62, 63, 64, 70, 73 Biomedical Scholars, 1, 45, 47, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 66, 76, 79, 80 Pfizer, 25 Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, 13 Phosphatases, 17 Phosphoimagers, 68 Phosphorylation, 17, 18, 21, 22, 24, 25 Photoporphyrin Derivatives, 6 Physics, 11 particle physics, 75 PI [Principal Investigator], 7, 8, 23, 24, 36, 39, 42, 53, 54, 55, 56, 59, 61, 62, 70, 73, 75 Posakony, James W., 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 35, 37, 39, 42 Post-Doctorate, 7, 18, 23, 24, 34, 35, 36, 37, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 56, 58, 61, 62, 68, 71, 72 Proteins, 21, 22, 29, 30, 33, 69 BHLH [basic helix-loop-helix] proteins, 30

GFP [green fluorescent proteins]], 33
helix-loop-helix proteins, 29, 30
Public Opinions, 9, 26, 33, 63, 64, 73, 75, 77, 78, 79, 80
Public Policy, 63, 77, 78
Publishing, 2, 18, 19, 22, 27, 30, 31, 32, 34, 35, 36, 40, 47, 48, 49, 51, 53, 55, 56, 57, 58, 64, 66, 71, 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 78, 82
peer review, 70, 71, 77
PubMed, 16, 19
Puerto Rico, 63

R

Racker, Efraim, 17, 18, 21, 22, 23, 24, 54, 72 Radioactivity, 21, 69 Religion, 77, 79, 80, 81 Rosenfeld, M. Geoffrey, 27 Roswell Park Cancer Institute, 5, 6, 7 Rotations, 27, 28, 30, 54

S

Sabin, Albert B., 79 Salk Institute, 27 Salk, Jonas, 27, 79 San Diego, California, 26, 27, 28, 29, 41 Science, 27, 48 Scientific American, 81 Scientific Education, 80 Scientific Literacy, 71, 81 Scientific Writing, 31, 32, 57, 58, 60 Sexual Identity, 53, 78 Skirball Institute of Biomolecular Medicine. See NYU [New York University] Society for Developmental Biology, 82 Spector, Mark, 21, 22, 70, 72 Spectrophotometer, 75 St. Lawrence River, 10 Statins, 47 Sullivan, David J., 14, 46, 47, 61 Syracuse, New York, 1, 3, 10, 29, 41

Т

TCA Cycle, 17

Teaching, 51, 55 Technology, 68, 69, 70, 71, 72 Thesis, 32, 34, 35, 36, 58 Tjian, Robert, 27, 29 Torrey Pines Cliffs, 27 Transcription, 20, 25, 26, 27, 29, 30, 33, 37, 47 Translational Science, 7, 67

U

U. S. Congress, 75
University of California, Berkeley, 26, 27, 29, 39
University of California, San Diego, 26, 27, 28, 34, 35, 39, 41
US News and World Report, 16

V

W

Warburg Effect, 17
Washington D.C., 63
Watertown, New York, 10
Watson, James D., 79
Whitehead Institute for Biomedical Research. *See* MIT [Massachusetts Institute of Technology]
Willow Brook Study, 77
Woods Hole Marine Biological Laboratory, 30, 32, 33, 36, 37, 38, 39
Wylie, Chris, 38

Y

Young Investigator, 59, 62, 65

Ζ

Zebrafish, 50

Vetter, David, 14